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ADDENDUM # 1 
RFP# 20/21-13LS 

Addendum Date:  5-10-2021 
RFP Name: Campus Dining, Catering & Vending Services 

 
Questions and Answers 
 
Please make the following changes/modifications to the subject solicitation: 
 
Below you will find the questions submitted by potential proposers and we have 
provided answers to all questions submitted prior to the specified deadline. 
 
NOTE:  The RFP opening date has not changed. 
 
Instructions to Proposer(s): 
 
Each proposer(s) must acknowledge receipt of any addenda on the Proposer’s 
Questionnaire to have his/her proposal accepted.  
 
1. QUESTION: Is Dunkin Donuts able to reopen in PBG at any time or is it closed 

permanently? 
ANSWER: Dunkin Donuts will not reopen at PBG, and the space they occupied can 
be utilized by the new vendor.  
 

2. QUESTION: Does Dunkin Donuts have rights to open sites in any of the other 
campuses within the next 10 years? 
ANSWER: There is no arrangement with Dunkin Donuts to open in any other sites at 
PBSC in the future.  
 

3. QUESTION: When does Dunkin Donuts contract end? 
ANSWER:  The current contract term ends April 30, 2024, with an option to renew for 
an additional five-year term. 
 

4. QUESTION:  Who owns the equipment at the Dunkin Donuts at the current Lake 
Worth campus? 
ANSWER: The Dunkin branded front-of-house equipment belongs to Dunkin, the 
back-of-house equipment, like the freezers and shelving belong to PBSC. The Coke 
coolers belong to Coke as per the pouring rights agreement.  
 

5. QUESTION: Why did Dunkin Donuts close the PBG site? 
ANSWER: The closure was due to the COVID-19 impact on business.  
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6. QUESTION: If you don’t receive any P&L bids what is PBSC budget for food service?  
ANSWER: If PBSC does not receive any P&L proposals, we will evaluate options 
including those presented by proposers. PBSC does not have the budget to 
independently fund food service operations. 
 

7. QUESTION: Given the extensive scope of the project, will there be an extension to 
the RFP due date? 
ANSWER: No.  Our internal stakeholder has a specific timeline for services to begin 
in September; therefore, we are not positioned to extend the due date of the 
solicitation. 
 

8. QUESTION: The document clearly outlines services for three campuses.  Is the 
College supportive of food service for the Belle Glade and Loxahatchee 
campuses? 
ANSWER: Yes, if a vendor would like to explore food service for those campuses, 
PBSC would welcome the conversation.   
 

9. QUESTION:  Is the provider responsible for providing internet? 
ANSWER: The College will provide all required utilities and broadband internet 
access at our expense. 
 

10. QUESTION: Can you provide the current food menu prices from Dunkin Donuts and 
previous Sodexo food menu prices?  We would like to be able to back into those 
against the sales to determine your participation %. 
ANSWER: Please see the links provided below for the menus and pricing. 
Catering Menu:  
https://www.palmbeachstate.edu/auxiliary-services/documents/PBSC_catering_menu_2020.pdf 
 
Regular Food Items Pricing:  
https://www.palmbeachstate.edu/auxiliary-services/documents/Sodexo_menu_2020.xlsx 
 
Dunkin Pricing:  
https://www.palmbeachstate.edu/auxiliary-services/documents/Dunkin_pricing.pdf 
 

11. QUESTION: Can the provider relocate café / kitchen equipment?  (Example: Boca 
campus turbo Chef is a safety hazard out in the open.) 
ANSWER: The equipment can be moved, with prior approval from PBSC.  The College 
can arrange to have the equipment moved by the campus Facilities Department.  
 

12. QUESTION:  Ask about getting an academic calendar to determine the number of 
operating days during the regular academic year. 
ANSWER: Please go to: https://www.palmbeachstate.edu/AcademicCalendar/.  
 

13. QUESTION: Please provide a breakdown of the catering sales by campus. 
ANSWER:  Please see Sec 1.12 of the solicitation for a breakdown of retail sales by 
campus. The breakdown of catering sales by campus is not available. 
 



RFP# 20/21-13LS             Page 3 of 6          Addendum # 1 

14. QUESTION: Please provide a copy of the catering copy of the catering menu with 
prices. 
ANSWER: Please see the link below for the catering menu and pricing. 
https://www.palmbeachstate.edu/auxiliary-services/documents/PBSC_catering_menu_2020.pdf 
 

15. QUESTION:  Page 9 you state ETA is a discontinue operation but page 14 you state 
hours how shall we proceed open or closed? 
ANSWER: The operation that was discontinued is TC, ETA is anticipated to remain 
operational. 
 

16. QUESTION: Please provide list of employees and current wages, weekly hours and 
benefits offered. 
ANSWER:  Sodexo’s contract has ended, and they have not been on site since 
March 2020. We do not have a list of employees, or wages to provide. 
 

17. QUESTION: Does campus desire investment by contractor for renovation? 
ANSWER: PBSC is requesting the vendor to provide a POS system, on-site signage for 
their concepts, and any proprietary equipment. Any additional investment would 
be welcomed by PBSC but is not a requirement of the solicitation. 
 

18. QUESTION:  Is there any unamortized investment from current contract that must be 
recognized? 
ANSWER: No.  
 

19. QUESTION: Share current menus and pricing. 
ANSWER:  Please see question 10 above. 
 

20. QUESTION: Is there a vehicle required for any campus delivery? 
ANSWER: The College will not provide vehicles for vendor use, but if a vendor has a 
vehicle that can be used for campus delivery, please include that in the proposal.  
 

21. QUESTION: Ask the question regarding the Dunkin D on campus who operates and 
why not food vendor? 
ANSWER: The Dunkin Donuts at the Lake Worth campus is owned and operated by 
a local franchisee.  
 

22. QUESTION: Do you offer any meal plans to your Athletes? 
ANSWER: No, not currently. 
 

23. QUESTION:  What is your current vending commission? 
ANSWER: Current snack and beverage commission is 28%. Each proposer should 
evaluate the opportunity and propose a commission structure that works within their 
projected model.  
 

24. QUESTION: At the Lake Worth campus, is the dishwasher on lease? 
ANSWER:   Yes, and PBSC is willing to discuss which party covers this expense with 
the highest ranked proposer. 
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25. QUESTION: At the Lake Worth campus, is the walk-in cooler/freezer shared with 
Dunkin Donuts? 
ANSWER: Yes, and there is also one walk-in cooler dedicated to the vendor. Dunkin 
Donuts uses the shared cooler for overflow storage only, as they have several 
reach-in units available in their area. 
 

26. QUESTION: When will the Lake Worth Dunkin Donuts reopen? 
ANSWER: The Dunkin Donuts on the Lake Worth campus is expected to open in 
August for the fall semester. 
 

27. QUESTION: For both Boca Raton and Palm Beach Gardens campuses, can the turbo 
chefs be moved? 
ANSWER:  The equipment can be moved, with prior approval from PBSC. The College 
can arrange to have it moved by the campus Facilities Department. 
 

28. QUESTION: Is there a dishwasher at the Palm Beach Gardens campus? 
ANSWER: There was one, but it has been removed. Should the vendor desire to have 
one, it would need to be leased or purchased. Past vendors have not found it 
necessary to have a dishwasher. 
 

29. QUESTION:  Are vendors required to use the existing signage? 
ANSWER: The proposer should submit recommendations for signage. 
 

30. QUESTION: On the Palm Beach Gardens campus, will the former Dunkin Donuts 
space be available immediately? 
ANSWER:  Yes. 
 

31. QUESTION: Who pays the lease on the Freestyle Coke machines? 
ANSWER: Palm Beach State College pays the lease. 
 

32. QUESTION: How many students are on each campus? 
ANSWER: Please see Sec. 1.3 of the solicitation, which provides the historical 
headcount by campus. 
 

33. QUESTION: How many people can the dining rooms seat on each campus? 
ANSWER: Please see Sec. 1.7 of the solicitation, which provides the seating capacity 
by campus. 
 

34. QUESTION: How many POS stations are at Lake Worth? 
ANSWER: The main cafeteria at Lake Worth is set up for two (2) POS stations and the 
ETA building satellite is set up for one (1) POS station. There is not currently a POS 
system installed. 
 

35. QUESTION: Where was the POS station at Palm Beach Gardens? 
ANSWER:  The POS station was at the south end of the service counter. 
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36. QUESTION: What was involved in the renovation at the Lake Worth campus? 
ANSWER: The Lake Worth servery and kitchen were renovated in the summer of 2019. 
This renovation included the addition of front of the house cooking stations, 
including grill, fryers, turbo chef oven, smoothie bar, induction cooking station, and 
hoods. The Dunkin franchise had previously shared the servery space but was 
relocated during this renovation to a separate space. The kitchen area was 
renovated to include the additional walk-in cooler and a more open food 
preparation area and additional equipment, including a tilt skillet. The facility has 
not been used since March 2020. The seating area received only a cosmetic make-
over of paint, lighting, and cleaning. 
 

37. QUESTION:  Are food items prepared at the ETA satellite at the Lake Worth campus? 
ANSWER: The facility at the ETA building functions as a grab and go location with the 
prep taking place at the main kitchen. The ETA building location consists of 
counters, coolers, POS, and hand wash sink. 
 

38. QUESTION: Does the College offer meal plans? 
ANSWER: Meal plans are not currently offered at the College.  The College’s card  
transaction system can process meal plan transactions should the proposers 
decide that a meal plan option would be beneficial. 
 

39. QUESTION: What POS systems will interface with the Atrium Campus Card system? 
ANSWER: Atrium is an open architecture system and offers interfaces to many of the 
common point of sales systems in the marketplace. Proposers are encouraged to 
reach out directly to Atrium for further information. 
 

40. QUESTION: Does the Lake Worth campus do the most catering? 
ANSWER:   As Lake Worth is the largest campus, a larger portion of the catering takes 
place on this campus. Also, previous vendors have often prepped and prepared 
much of the catering for other campuses at the Lake Worth campus. 
 

41. QUESTION: Does the College have vehicles available for catering? 
ANSWER: The College will not provide vehicles for vendor use. 
 

42. QUESTION: Does the Dunkin operation operate through the campus dining 
contract? 
ANSWER: The Dunkin operation at Lake Worth is contracted separately from the 
campus dining contract and is not a part of this solicitation. Dunkin has vacated the 
Palm Beach Gardens campus and the space previously occupied by Dunkin is 
available for use by the new vendor at the Palm Beach Gardens campus. 
 

43. QUESTION: Can various concepts be offered at the Palm Beach Gardens campus? 
ANSWER:   The proposer can propose any concepts they think will be successful at 
any of the campuses. 
 

44. QUESTION: Are there any additional food venues at the Palm Beach Gardens 
campus? 
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ANSWER: There are no additional food venues on the campus. Vending is available 
throughout the campus. 
 

45. QUESTION:  Are there any additional food venues at the Boca Raton campus? 
ANSWER: There are no additional food venues at the Boca Raton PBSC campus. 
Vending is available throughout the campus.   
 

46. QUESTION: Will the Coke Coolers remain at the locations? 
ANSWER: The Coke reach in coolers and fountain systems are provided as part of 
the College’s Sponsorship agreement with Coca-Cola. The vendor may request 
additional coolers or request to have coolers removed based on needs of the 
operation.    
 

47. QUESTION: Are the smallware’s the property of the College? 
ANSWER: The smallware’s and paper products at each location are available for 
use by the new vendor.  Many of the items are in new or like-new condition. Each 
campus has a substantial supply available as can be viewed in the video tours. 

 
48. QUESTION:  Do students tend to eat in the eating area at the Lake Worth campus? 

ANSWER: Yes. During pre-COVID times, this was a very busy area. Students often 
congregate here to socialize, game, and eat. 
 

49. QUESTION: Is the walk-in cooler/freezer at the Palm Beach Gardens campus 
operational? 
ANSWER:   Yes, the cooler was shut down as an energy saving measure during the 
closure.  The unit has not been open for business since March 2020. 
 

50. QUESTION: How many vending machines are at each campus? 
ANSWER:  Please see Sec. 1.9 of the solicitation which outlines a breakdown of                                      
vending by campus. 


